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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN ...\‘/ﬁ
SERVICES &N o7\

O/NH DIVISION OF

Public I lealth Services
29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527 MAAAS  provingheath, preventing disease, reducing costs for ll

603-271-3958 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 3958
Fax: 603-271-4934 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

José Thier Montero
Director

September 30, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to establish a list of dentists, with the ability to expand said list to include additional
interested dental contractors to provide necessary dental treatment for clients enrolled in the
New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program. No maximum client or service volume is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is $100,000 each State
Fiscal Year for a total of $200,000. The Agreements are effective date of Governor and

Executive Council approval through June 30, 2016. 10D 95 DYher Fdr\O\b

VENDOR LOCATION
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Manchester, NH
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Berlin, NH

Funds are available in the following account for SFY 2015, and are anticipated to be
available in SFY 2016 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office, without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed
and justified.

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE
CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
SFY 2015 530-500371 Drug Rebates 90024608 $100,000
SFY 2016 530-500371 Drug Rebates 90024608 $100,000

Total $200,000




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

September 30, 2014
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EXPLANATION

This requested action seeks approval of two (2) of seven (7) agreements that will ensure
the provision of dental treatment and other oral health services to New Hampshire residents
living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), statewide that are enrolled in the New
Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program. The licensed Dentists will provide dental treatment and
other oral health services to enrolled clients, on an individual, case-by-case, as needed basis.
The Department anticipates that the remaining (5) five agreements will be presented at an
upcoming Governor and Executive Council meeting.

The New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program receives funding from the Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program, Part B for
medical services, oral health, and home health care services. HRSA funding is in accordance
with the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Treatment Extension Act of 2009. The intent of the legislation
and federal funding is to assure access to care for financially eligible individuals living with
HIV/AIDS. A recipient of federal funding, the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program is
subject to the federal mandate to implement contractual agreements with all service providers
and to maintain nationally accepted fiscal, programmatic, and monitoring standards established
by HRSA. Federal regulation also requires that Ryan White CARE Program funds be used as a
“payer of last resort”.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, federal regulations
and monitoring standards will not be met and eligible New Hampshire residents living with HIV
with immediate oral health needs and without access to care will not receive prevention and
treatment for dental conditions. The services in this Contract will promote the goals of the
National HIV/AIDS Strategy and maintain a continuum of care in order to reduce HIV related
health disparities and the occurrence of negative health outcomes. The program currently
provides services to approximately 450 to 500 clients statewide.

A Request for Applications was posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services' web site on April 4, 2014 to solicit dentists to provide dental services to New
Hampshire Ryan White CARE program clients. In addition, an email was sent to twelve (12)
known dental providers for Ryan White Part B services on April 4, 2014, notifying them that a
Request for Application was posted. Seven (7) applications were received from licensed
dentists, and were approved for funding. Two (2) of the seven (7) Dentists are listed on
Attachment 1.

As referenced in the Request for Application and in exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, this Agreement has the option to extend for two (2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval
of the Governor and Executive Council.
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The performance of this program will be measured by the number of New Hampshire
Ryan White CARE Program clients that actually receive dental services.
The geographic area to be served is statewide.
Othes
Source of Funds: 100% &ederal-Funds from the Pharmaceutical Rebates.

OTRer
In the event that the &ederal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

73%@4% y

José Thier Montero, MD, MHCDS
Director

Approved by: Nlcholas A To@
Commissioner e

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Attachment 1

Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Public Health Services

New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program

Licensed Dentist List

SFY 2015/2016

The following is an initial list of Dentists that agree to provide dental treatment and other oral
health services to clients enrolled in the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program (NH
CARE Program). Additional Dentists may be added in the future as needed.

List of Licensed Dentists

Dentist

Address

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Manchester, NH

Tri-County Action Community Program, Inc.

Berlin, NH




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Attachment 2

NH CARE Program Dental Fee Schedule 2014 - 2015

Code Procedure Fee
D0120 Periodic oral evaluation 41.00
D0140 Limited oral evaluation 60.00
D0150 Comprehensive oral evaluation 62.00
D0210 Intraoral-complete series 96.00
D0220 Intraoral-Periapical 1st film 15.00
D0230 Intraoral-Periapical each additional 10.00
D0270 Bitewings - Xray 17.00
D0272 Bitewings - two films 25.00
D0274 Bitewings - four films 45.00
D0330 Panoramic film 83.00
D1110 Prophylaxis adult 85.00
D1120 Prophylaxis child 38.00
D2140 Amalgam - 1 surface 150.00
D2150 Amalgam - 2 surface 155.00
D2160 Amalgam - 3 surface 180.00
D2161 Amalgam - 4/4+ surface 200.00
D2330 Resin-1 surface anterior 131.00
D2331 Resin-2 surface anterior 143.00
D2332 Resin-3 surface anterior 147.00
D2335 Resin-4/4+ surface anterior 165.00
D2391 Resin-1 surface posterior 150.00
D2392 Resin-2 surface posterior 155.00
D2393 Resin-3 surface posterior 180.00
D2394 Resin-4/4+ surface posterior 200.00
D2940 Sedative Filling 75.00
D4341 Scaling and root planing (per quadrant) 100.00
D4355 Full mouth debridement 90.00
D4910 Periodontal Maintenance 120.00
D5110 Complete denture-maxillary 800.00
D5120 Complete denture-mandibular 800.00
D5130 Immediate denture-maxillary 875.00
D5140 Immediate denture-mandibular 875.00
D5211 Maxillary partial-resin base 600.00
D5212 Maxillary partial-resin base 600.00

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists
Attachment 2
Page 10f2



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Attachment 2

D5213 Max partial-cast metal w/resin 1,300.00
D5214 Mand partial-cast metal w/resin 1,200.00
D5410 Adjust complete denture, maxillary 50.00
D5411 Adjust complete denture, mandibular 50.00
D5421 Adjust partial denture, maxillary 50.00
D5422 Adjust partial denture, mandibular 50.00
D5520 Replace denture teeth 127.00
D5670 Replace All Teeth/Acrilic on cast metal framework$359 359.00
D5750 Reline complete maxillary denture 244.00
D5751 Reline complete mandibular denture 244.00
D7140 Extraction-erupted/exposed 150.00
D7210 Extraction-surgical-imp bony 225.00
D7240 Removal of Impacted Tooth 348.00
D7310 Alveoloplasty - per quaddrant 275.00
D7472 Removal of torus palatinus Mandibular - 2 quadrants 400.00
D5760 Reline maxillary parital denture 99.00
D5761 Reline mandibular partial denture 99.00
D9110 Palliative Tx of Dental Pain 33.00
D9220 Gen anesthesia (first 30 minutes) 100.00
D9221 Gen anesthesia (each additional 15 minutes) 40.00
D9241 Intravenous Conscious Sedation/first 30 min 100.00
D9242 Intravenous Conscious Sedation/ea add'l 30 min 40.00
D9310 Dental Consultation 68.00
D9612 Parenteral Drug Injection ($77 each) 77.00
D9940 Mouth Guard 110.00

Additional services may be approved by DHHS on a case by case

basis

R:\OCPH\FCH\STDHIV\Group\CARE Program\Policy & Procedures\Dental

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists
Attachment 2
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
555 Auburn Street
Easter Seals NH, Inc. Manchester, NH 03103
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 65795-99-902010-5240=-162=
603-623-8863 $0073 1+ June 30, 2016 $200,000
05-95-90-902510-2229-
530-500371
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Brook Dupee, Bureau Chief 603 271 4483
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
é Z ZI\/CLV ” . Elin Treanor, COO/CFO

1.13 Acknowledgement: State ofh ItI , County oftf_l_ubb)‘r[)UQh

On Q\Z‘_’L‘H before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executeg\ﬁmd&went in the capacity indicated in block
1.12. N\ O,

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace §V X "ee,
FI MY

- 5 ¢ COMMISSION

b' £ { EXPIRES

[Seal] W mmlfb Z ! DEC.4,2018
‘..’L

\\
Q
KU

C‘

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace % 6
’,’,’ .'"uu'\')' '\Q‘\\\
Auypi D, Monrse . Nt bl ic 2% iasad

l”llumm\\\\\

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

% [\/\l(\—)()wg—/ Brook Dupee, Bureau Chief

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department df Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
pp

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By:

1.18 Approval by the GovArnor and Executive Council

/ WM«%\M\%MM \ ll o } 4

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampsbhire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any cosis incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

C?/‘

o -7

Contractor Initials: . o
Date: y



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
" recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail ali Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other ciaim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Program Name: New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program
1.1. Purpose:

The purpose of this agreement is to perform necessary dental treatment for clients enrolled
in the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program (NH CARE Program). The goal of the
NH CARE Program is to provide financial assistance for necessary dental treatment and
other oral health services, to uninsured and underinsured New Hampshire (NH) residents
living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), statewide.

2. Provision of Services:

2.1. The Contractor shall act as a representative of the NH CARE Program to provide
preventive and restorative dental care to uninsured and underinsured NH CARE
Program clients.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide services to enrolled NH CARE Program clients only;
services provided outside of enrollment periods will not be reimbursed.

2.3. The Contractor shall refer clients to their Medical Case Manager as needed to re-enroll
in the NH CARE Program.

2.4. The Contractor shall invoice NH CARE Program for services using a health insurance
claim form or reasonable facsimile; additional invoicing methods may be approved by
the NH CARE Program.

2.5. The Contractor shall invoice NH CARE Program according to the NH CARE Program
Dental Fee Schedule; request approval for additional services through the Contract
Monitor.

2.6. The Contractor shall participate i n an annual site visit with NH CARE Program staff.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide client level data as requested by the NH CARE Program,
for the completion of annual reports to the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA).

2.8. The Contractor shall maximize billing to NH Medicaid and private dental insurance. The
NH CARE Program shall be the payer of last resort and will only reimburse services for
uninsured and underinsured clients.

3. Licensing Requirements:

Dentist(s) performing services under this agreement must possess a current dental license
issued by the State of New Hampshire Board of Dental Examiners.

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists Contractor Initials bE;/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit A

4. Dental providers shall adhere to the NH CARE Program Standards of Care for Oral Health
Services, and all applicable Programmatic, Fiscal and Universal Monitoring Standards, as
documented by the HRSA:

¢ http://hab.hrsa.gov/manageyourgrant/files/programmonitoringpartb.pdf
e http://hab.hrsa.gov/manageyourgrant/files/fiscalmonitoringpartb.pdf
e http://hab.hrsa.gov/manageyourgrant/files/universalmonitoringpartab.pdf

5. The Department of Health and Human Services reserves the right to discontinue this
agreement should it discover any abridgment of the above partner agreements that
jeopardize the intent of this agreement.

6. Entire Agreement:

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and they
constitute the entire Agreement between the State and the Contactor. General Provisions
(P-37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Dental Fee
Schedule, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional special Provisions, Exhibit D
Cortication Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying,
Exhibit F Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance, Exhibit H
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health Insurance
Portability Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit J Certification
Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Compliance. In the
event of any conflict of contradiction between or among the Agreement Documents, the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

ias 27
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms &nad conditions of the Agreement, the
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control shall reimburse the Contractor for actual dental
service(s) provided by the contractor to enrolled NH CARE Program clients. Reimbursement
shall be based on the NH CARE Program Dental Fee Schedule identified in Exhibit B-1.

2. Price Limitation. This Agreement is one of multiple Agreements that will serve NH Ryan
White CARE Program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is identified in Block 1.8 of the P-37
for the duration of the Agreement.

3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contactor agrees that payment under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

4. The funding source for this Agreement for Dental Services is 100% Other Funds from the
Pharmaceutical Rebates.

5. Contract dentists shall complete and submit a Dental Claim invoice, due within 30 days.
Completed invoice must be submitted to:

NH CARE Program

Bureau of Infectious Disease Control
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-4934

6. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available. Contractor will keep detailed records of their dental
services related to Department of Health and Human Services funded programs and
services.

7. Dentists are accountable to meet the scope of services. Failure to meet the scope of
services may jeopardize the funded Dentist's current and/or future funding. Corrective action
may include actions such as a contract amendment or termination of the contract.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit B-1

NH CARE Program Dental Fee Schedule 2014 - 2015

Code Procedure Fee
D0120 | Periodic oral evaluation 41.00
D0140 | Limited oral evaluation 60.00
D0150 | Comprehensive oral evaluation 62.00
D0210 | Intraoral-complete series 96.00
D0220 | Intraoral-Periapical 1st film 15.00
D0230 | Intraoral-Periapical each additional 10.00
D0270 | Bitewings - Xray 17.00
D0272 | Bitewings - two films 25.00
D0274 | Bitewings - four films 45.00
D0330 | Panoramic film 83.00
D1110 | Prophylaxis aduit 85.00
D1120 | Prophylaxis child 38.00
D2140 | Amalgam - 1 surface 150.00
D2150 | Amalgam - 2 surface 155.00
D2160 | Amalgam - 3 surface 180.00
D2161 | Amalgam - 4/4+ surface 200.00
D2330 | Resin-1 surface anterior 131.00
D2331 | Resin-2 surface anterior 143.00
D2332 | Resin-3 surface anterior 147.00
D2335 | Resin-4/4+ surface anterior 165.00
D2391 | Resin-1 surface posterior 150.00
D2392 | Resin-2 surface posterior 155.00
D2393 | Resin-3 surface posterior 180.00
D2394 | Resin-4/4+ surface posterior 200.00
D2940 | Sedative Filling 75.00
D4341 | Scaling and root planing (per quadrant) 100.00
D4355 | Full rnouth debridement 90.00
D4910 | Periodontal Maintenance 120.00
D5110 | Complete denture-manxillary 800.00
DS5120 | Complete denture-mandibular 800.00
D5130 | Immediate denture-maxillary 875.00
D5140 | Immediate denture-mandibular 875.00
D5211 | Maxillary partial-resin base 600.00
DS5212 | Maxillary partial-resin base 600.00

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit 8-1

Pagelof2

Contractor Initials V
Date V; /ngﬂ/%



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit B-1

D5213 | Max partial-cast metal w/resin 1,300.00
D5214 | Mand partial-cast metal w/resin 1,200.00
D5410 | Adjust complete denture, maxillary 50.00
D5411 | Adjust complete denture, mandibular 50.00
D5421 | Adjust partial denture, maxillary 50.00
D5422 | Adjust partial denture, mandibular 50.00
D5520 | Replace denture teeth 127.00
DS670 | Replace All Teeth/Acrilic on cast metal framework$359 359.00
D5750 [ Reline complete maxillary denture 244.00
D5751 | Reline complete mandibular denture 244.00
D7140 | Extraction-erupted/exposed 150.00
D7210 | Extraction-surgical-imp bony 225.00
D7240 | Removal of Impacted Tooth 348.00
D7310 | Alveoloplasty - per quaddrant 275.00
D7472 | Removal of torus palatinus Mandibular - 2 quadrants 400.00
D5760 [ Reline maxillary parital denture 99.00
D5761 | Reline mandibular partial denture 99.00
D9110 | Palliative Tx of Dental Pain 33.00
D9220 | Gen anesthesia (first 30 minutes) 100.00
D9221 | Gen anesthesia {each additional 15 minutes) 40.00
D9241 | intravenous Conscious Sedation/first 30 min 100.00
D9242 | Intravenous Conscious Sedation/ea add'l 30 min 40.00
D9310 | Dentai Consultation 68.00
D9612 | Parenteral Drug Injection (577 each) 77.00
D9940 | Mouth Guard 110.00
Additional services may be approved by DHHS on a case by case basis

R:\OCPH\FCH\STDHIV\Group\CARE Program\Policy & Procedures\Dental
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials %f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUD!T, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

124
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annua! schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federai legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the
State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to
terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but
not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

3. Extension:
This agreement has the option for a potential extension of up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Council.

4. Insurance:
Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the following subparagraph is
added:
14.1.1 Comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in
amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence and umbrella liability
coverage in the amount of $15,000,000 per occurrence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part li of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials W

Workplace Requirements ;; g z
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date y /ﬂ/y



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to paiticipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.

ehihay i leptn
Tae Eln INAAN
Cod/ (A0

Date

e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best ot his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Cltfpares Tl

Date Name: H// B N[ V724

Title:

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide imnmediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

»ou ”ou " u

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

" ou

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

And Other Responsibility Matters
CU/DHHSA 10713 Page 1 of 2 Date

7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

12.

11.2.

11.4.

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

14.

13.1.

13.2.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitied “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Date

v /‘ % /4 7 Nam:é/gf/\’(%;kg//l Yo
Title: 00/(//5 /@‘

=7

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contiact) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.

0y ooy “Chilres—
Date ?;2e: /f:7/1/-/. W44£‘/
Coy (7Y

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials

The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance 4 )
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Y /} ‘//}ﬂ/// L’M,\,(Lzz____
e Tie Sy PO
(oc/f 5

\_6 ,/./-
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Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials

Environmental Tobacco Smoke .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Business Associate Agreement does not
apply to this contract.

—
Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement Contractor [nitials k?//

Page 1 of 1 Date UZQ{ i //Lﬂ/l//



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SYeNOOOhALN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.
o4 Y24 Tl

Date Name: — ' y
Title: /—”'\"///\-/ M//4 e

R
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: @35S 734 7

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperajive agreements?
NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
198672
_ NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

. —
?/
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials 4
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State of Neto Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Ilampshirc, do hercby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshirc nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office

is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | hereto
set my hand and causc to be affixed
the Seal of the Staic of New Hampshire,
this 10" day of April A.D. 2014

Zay Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporation with Seal)

! Belk, Bushe - Asistant Seevetors, of the

(Corporation Representative Name) (Corporation Representative Titl8)

m“'ff Smls /\]H’. Inc. , do hereby certify that:

(Corporation Name)

(1) I am the duly elected and acting ASSLS‘('M“' 5€WI%M y of the
(Corporation Representativd Title)
Sﬂ { NH [ , a /\}@K) HQM pshive corporation  (the
“Corporation”); !
(Corporation Name) (State of Incorporation)

(2) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the Seal and minute books of the Corporation;
(3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates;

(4) the following are true, accurate and complete copies of the resolutions adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting of the said Board of Directors held on the

LL day of Ju:ﬂg , 20 _[f_ which meeting was duly held in accordance with
MMH&WWSM% law and the by-laws of the Corporation:

(State of Incorporation)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting by and
through the Department of Health and Human Services, providing for the performance by the Corporation
of certain Dental Sevuices services, and that the President (any Vice
President) (and the Treasurer) (or any of them acting singly) be and hereby (is) (are) authorized and
directed for and on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to take any
and all such actions and to execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver for and on behalf of this Corporation
any and all documents, agreements and other instruments (and any amendments, revisions or
modifications thereto) as (she) (he) (any of them) may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate to
accomplish the same;

RESOLVED: That the signature of any officer of this Corporation affixed to any instrument or document
described in or contemplated by these resolutions shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of said
officer to bind this Corporation thereby;

The forgoing resolutions have not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever, and

remain in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and the following person(s) (has) (have) been duly
elected and now occupy the office(s) indicated below

——
L@W\»; J. G’ﬂJ\AMOY\ President Name

E“f\ TW«AOV‘ &:ﬁ%e

Treasurer Name




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the ASD(&'*OJC{‘ Swwhw q

(Title)
of the Corporation and have affixed its corporate seal this 02 “f day of J/Uu/\g , 20 _l_‘f_ .

[, P

T UTitle) AssistanT Seve [ary

(Seal)

STATE OF N H

COUNTY OF JiLUﬂMﬂDJ@kL
On this thez ’:m\day ofm 20_]‘_‘[', before me, MMMQ_ the undersigned officer,

personally appeared , who acknowledge her/himself to be the
Mﬁﬁﬂj&mm, ?ﬂST(X S?Q)S ‘\)H lﬂC , @ corporation, and that
she/he, as

(Title) (Name of Corporation)

such Aﬁ [S ‘(M l’} & H M u‘l’g being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the
(Title)

purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by her/himself as
Bty Puwke .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF | hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Pgblic/Justice of %e Peace

it
My Commission expires: l( !/_/[l Z:( })fz \‘8\\ DMO
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Client#: 497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE bl

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

R

PRODUCER
PN £ 855-874-0123 Ky 603-625-1107

USI Insurance Services LLC
3 Executive Park Dr., Suite 300 ED'%AA%S s sgndy.lacroix@usi.biz' ‘ ‘
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Bedford, NH 03110

855-874-0123 ' msurer o : Philadelphia Insurance Company '23850
INSURED .

Easter Seals NH, Inc. :::3::::

Easter Seals NY, Inc. | INSURER D :

555 Auburn Street " INSURERE :

Manchester, NH 03103 :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

i TYPE OF INSURANCE ISR e POLICY NUMBER (RRDONTYY) (MADONTYY) | LIuTs
A | GENERAL LIABILITY X | X |PHPK1220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENGE $1,000,000
X' COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY AR { A S rerce, | $100,000
cLams-MaDE | X| occunr | MED EXP {Any one person) | $5,000
X: Professional Liab . PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 31,000,000
| _GENERAL AGGREGATE | $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: [ PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGaG | 53,000,000
| GEN : T APPLES . PAGE_| $9,U0UV00
_ poucy & Loc o L _ 4 s
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 'PHPK1220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 FMBNED SINGLELMIT | 11,000,000
X any auTo ‘ BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
"7 ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
|y oS ATESineD bl
. X wreoautos X !autos {Per accident) s |
]
A | X UMBRELLALAB ' X | ocouR PHUB471553 09/01/2014 09/01/201§ EACH OCCURRENCE 515,000,000
__EXCESSLIAB . | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $15,000,000
oep __ X ReTenTion $$10,000 ] o o $
WORKERS COMPENSATION ! WC STATU- o
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN' TORY LIMIT ER .
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 3
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A E.L EACH ACCIDENT 8
(Mandatory In NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under oo
__ | DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bslow . i ] _ E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT _§

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Addltional Remarks Schedule, If more space s required)
*“*Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realtty, Inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehablilitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum Center,
Easter Seals VT, Inc.,- The General Liability policy includes a Blanket Automatic Additional insured
Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Walver of Subrogation status to the Certlficate
Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement between the named insured and the

(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
State of NH SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Dept. of Health & Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION, Al rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of2 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#513141709/M13136562 LXGZP



DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

certificate holder that requires such status, and only with regard to the above referenced on behalf of the
named insured. The General Liability policy contains a special endorsement with “"Primary and Non
Contributory” wording.

Re: 14 Dolphin Circle, Nashua, NH

SAGITTA 25.3 (2010/05) 2 of 2
#513141709/M13136562
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ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDD/YYYY}
12/26/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION [S WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement ¢ 1 this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate hoider in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 1-617-723-7775
Hays Companies of New England

Cﬁ IACY Nichael BOiSJG!t

PN, Ex; 617.778.504¢ | fA%, No): 617 723 5155

133 Federal Street A};‘Dggss _mboisvert@heyscompanies.com
2nd Floor T R
Boston, MA 02110 INSURER(S) #FFORDING COVERAGE . NalCE
B INSURER A: ONITED STATE: FIRE INS CO 21113

INSURED INSURER B :
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Tt '_' ) o

INSURERC : . _
555 Auburn Street INSURERD : B .
Manchester, NH 03103-4803 INSURER E - - -

INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 37683898 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHZR DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDlTlONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL'SUBR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY NUMBER

A

""POLICY EFF | POLICYEXP
(MM/DD

IYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) | LIMIT'S

GENERAL LIABILITY

_ COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY
" CLAIMS-MADE | OCCUR

| EACH OCCURRENCE
| “DAMAGE TO RENTED -

$
T ittt ;8
i ; . MEDEXP (Anx cneperson) .5
| PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY  §
. GENERAL AGGREGATE 5

; PROJUCTS - COMPIOP AGG

_GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 3 _
POLICY ' j’é‘é’f LOC ; ] S
AUTOMOBILE UABILITY | ! fe‘i’ﬁﬂiﬁ lS'NGLE M s
: ANY AUTO y i X BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ N
ALL OWNED | SCHEDULED k : [ L INIUR !
AUTOS . | AUTOS ! : BODILY INJURY (Per aoqder}l)l 3
: NON-OWNED ; i " PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS TAUTOS I _(Per accident) .
. . $
UMBRELLA LlAB " QCCUR i EACH OCCURRENCE 5
. ' ) ’ 3
_EXCESS LiAB | CLAIMS-MADE !  AGGREGATE s
' DED RETENTION § : -
WORKERS COMPENSATION _ P WCSTATU. | |OTH-
A AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY 406-6810956 | 01/01/14 01701715 X,roRyumits| R
| E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

YIN
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE :
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
{Mandatory in NH)

i yes, describe unde: :
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow i I

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE § 1,000,000
E.L DISEASE - POLICY LiMIT § 1,000,000

—

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

Bvidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NE 03301
USA

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABO'E DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE f DLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Fo

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
mboisvert

37683898

© 1988-201C ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACURD
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Easter Seals

DISABILITY SERVICES
®

Mission:

Easter Seals provides exceptional services to
ensure that all people with disabilities or special
needs and their families have equal
opportunities to live, learn, work and play in

their communities.



2014 Easter Seals New Hampshire Board of Directors

Chairman
Jim Bee

Past Chairman
Richard Rawlings

Treasurer
Andrew MacWilliam

Assistant Treasurer
Tim Murray,
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the statements of financial position as of August 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional
expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. ’

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC



To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, and changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis
rather than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14,
2013 on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

\Bd(erk)amr\?kbts

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 14, 2013



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance of
~$210,300 in 2013 and $131,500 in 2012, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $930,400 in 2013 and $395,000 in 2012
Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $25,500 in 2013 and $25,000 in 2012
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Rate reserves
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2013 2012
$ 3,042,621 $ 4,402,187
247,471 441,980
11,224,708 9,321,570
686,110 491,729
541,961 458,005
783844 _1.304.173
16,526,715 16,419,644
4558513 5,017,773
28,066,884 25,132,481
822,504 910,171
244,751 254,390
14264341 13,005,757
6.830.800 6,620,011
$71,314,508 $67.360.227
$ 4,212,394 $ 1,982,604
1,812,128 2,630,935
4,143,454 4,362,192
- 435,008
1,866,234 1,757,283
708,132 734,470
796.290 746,716
13,538,632 12,649,208
3,191,386 3,778,487
1,367,458 1,168,659
2,050,214 4,401,508
25318667 22.923.934
45,466,357 44,921,796
14,767,708 11,937,759
925,437 598,750
10.155.006  _9.901.922
25.848.151  22.438.43]
$71.314,508 $67,360,227



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions ¥ 862353 § 1,622346 § 13,648 § 2,498,347
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $307,832 857,369 131,154 - 988,523
Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $80,637 391,930 51,304 - 443234
Bequests 369,823 - - 369,823
Net assets released from restrictions 1,497.063 (1,497.,063) - -
Total public support 3,978,538 307,741 13,648 4,299,927
Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies 66,453,590 - - 66,453,590
Other fees and grants 24,013,223 - - 24,013,223
Sales to public 4,019,558 - - 4,019,558
Dividend and interest income 681,151 1,141 - 682,292
Rental income 144,771 - - 144,771
Other 695,295 - - 695,295
Total revenue 96,007,588 1,141 - 96.008.729
Total public support and revenue 99,986,126 308,882 13,648 100,308,656
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education 609,102 - - 609,102
Professional education 41,275 - - 41,275
Direct services 87,378.754 - - 87.378.754
Total program services 88,029,131 - - 88,029,131
Supporting services:
Management and general 9,404,656 - - 9,404,656
Fundraising 1,756,069 - - 1.756.069
Total supporting services 11,160,725 - - 11,160,725
Total functional expenses 99,189,856 - - 99,189,856
Support of National programs 121,780 - - 121,780
Total operating expenses 99,311,636 - - 99.311.636
Increase in net assets from operations 674,490 308,882 13,648 997,020



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps $ 2377632 % - $ - $ 2377632
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments 789,496 24,173 - 813,669
Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others - - 239,436 239,436
Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment 7,392 - - 1.392
3.174,520 24,173 239.436 3,438,129
Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations 3,849,010 333,055 253,084 4,435,149
Loss from discontinued operations (1,019.061) (6.368) = (1,025.429)
Total increase in net assets 2,829,949 326,687 253,084 3,409,720
Net assets at beginning of year 11,937,759 598,750 9,901,922 22,438431
Net assets at end of year $14.767,708 $__925,437 $10,155.006 $_25,848,151

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31,2012

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $618,599

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $79,441

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Dircct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
$ 1,529,794 % 370,723 $ 62,323 $ 1,962,840
1,114,326 71,451 - 1,185,777
445,604 32,367 - 477,971
127,761 - - 127,761

482,671 (482.671) = -
3,700,156 (8,130) 62,323 3,754,349
63,215,906 - ~ 63,215,906
26,755,347 - - 26,755,347
4,057,412 - - 4,057,412
680,465 3,635 - 684,100
140,373 - - 140,373
642,000 - - 642.000
95,491,503 3.635 - 95.495.138
99,191,659 (4,495) 62,323 99,249,487
595,634 - - 595,634
22,251 - - 22,251
86,643,303 - — 86.643.303
87,261,188 - - 87,261,188
8,700,472 - - 8,700,472
1,882,355 - —~ 1.882.355
10,582.827 - - 10.582.827
97,844,015 - - 97,844,015
134,887 - — 134,887
97,978,902 - - 97.978.902
1,212,757 (4,495) 62,323 1,270,585



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2012

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps $(1,262,396) § - 3 - $(1,262,396)
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments 562,646 6,681 - 569,327
Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others - - 345,574 345,574
Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment 4.442 — — 4.442
(695,308) 6,681 345,574 (343.053)
Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations 517,449 2,186 407,897 927,532
(Loss) gain from discontinued operations (83.341) 2237 - (81,104)
Total increase in net assets 434,108 4,423 407,897 846,428
Net assets at beginning of year 11,503,651 594,327 9.494.025 21,592,003
Net assets at end of year $11,937,.759 $_598,750 $9,901,922 $22,438.431

See accompanying notes.
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Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Larry Gammon President/CEO $352,452 0% $ 0
Elin Treanor CFO $240,000 0% $ 0
Tina Sharby Chief Human Resources

Officer $140,000 0% $ 0
Christina Lachance VP Children’s Services $95,000 0% $ 0
Shannon Farrell Dentist $135,000 FFS — as required
Bethany Islieb Dental Assistant $37,440 FFS — as required
Kara Malenfant Dental Assistant $37,440 FFS — as required
Ellen Therrien Dental Hygienist $67,213 FFS — as required




Employment

7/88 to Present

Larry J. Gammon

President, Chief Executive Officer

Easter Seals New Hampshxre/Vermont/New York
555 Aubum St.

Matichester, NH 03103

A member of Easter Seals National, the Agency is a comprehensive,
multi-facility organization with services throughout New Hampshire,

Vermont and New York Employmg over 1000 pcrsons. and opemtmg in

6/85-7/88
8/75 —6/85

Eduoahonal Resxdentmi Chmcal Medncnl and Campmg/Recrenuonal
Position reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Executive Vice President

Vice President

Deputy Executive Director

Easter Seal Society/Goodwill Industries of New Hampshire/Vermont

In progressive management experiences, guided the Agency’s programs
through a growth from 1+ million dollar budget, and status as one of the
most comprehensive service organizations in the country.

Directly responsible to the Executive Director, later President, for
supervision of all professional programs of the comprehensive
rehabilitation centers, with CARF accreditation in Audiology, Spceech
Pathology, Social Adjustment, Physical Restoration and Vocational
Adjustment. In addition, the Society operates a large day school for
handicapped pupils, 3 work adjustment center/sheltered workshops, a
comprehensive camping program, retail sales outlets, and a pupil
transportation program of 75 students per day. Duties included, but were
not limited to, hiring and supervision of staff, program devclopment,
budget development and control, procuring funding, and staffing of
various Board committees.



LiGammon
page 2

9/71 - 8/75

9/70-7/71

New Hampshire Easter Seal Society for Crippled Children & Adults, Inc.
870 Hayward St.
Manchester, NH 03103

Pogition:” Facilities Director, Easter Seal School
Program Development, supervision and recruitment of staff, screening of

pupils; developing budget, and securing funding.

New Hampshire Departmnent of Education
Keene Public Schools

2/69 - 8/70

9/67 - 1/69

Keene, NH 03331
Position: Special Education Consultant
1 year study of special education needs of 6 small towns in New

Hampshire. Responsible to 6 school boards and the New Hampshire
Department of Special Education, Title VI-B Grant.

Gary Public Schools

Gary, IN

Position: Teacher, Special Education

Classroom teacher, M.R. Summer program for trainable M.R.
Charlettesville Public Schools

Charlottesville, VA

Position: Teacher M.R. - Department Chairman

Teacher, pre-vocational services, Department Chairman for Junior High
age M.R. Director, Summer project (7/68), Title I.



L)Gammon

page 3

Education

9/62 - 8/66 University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA
B.S. in Special Education, emphasis in Mental Retardation. All
undergraduate courses were at the Master’s Level. Dean’s List, Junior &
Senior years.

9/66 —8/67 University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA
36 hours of Graduate School of Education, emphasis in Administration,
Testing & Evaluation and Research. Full time graduate scholarship.

Service National

Chairman, Board of Trustees, CARF, 1990-1991
Member, Board of Trustees, CARF, 1985-1991 .
Medders Award, Outstanding Easter Seals Executive, 1995
President, Easter Seals Leadership Association, 1998-2000

local . _ ..
Queen City Rotary Club, Member

Serenity Place, Board of Directors

Mayor’s Task Force/Senior Services

Hillcrest Terrace, Board of Directors

CEQ Council

Dartmouth Hitchceck Medical Center — Assembly of Overseers
YMCA Disability Council

R it
Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 2010

" Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 2005

Non-Profit Business of the Decade, Business NH Magazine, 2000
Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 1994



Elin Treanor

CAREER SUMMARY:

—~ —Leadership, managentent and teamwork involving all business related functionsand  ~ ~
administration. Major emphasis on providing high quality and cost effective
services to customers.

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE:

‘e Accounting, financial reporting, budgeting, internal controls, auditing, cost
reportmg, variance analysls accounts payable, purchasmg and payroll

. Bﬂhng. reccxvables collections, ﬁmdmg sourges, thu-d party relmbursement
® Insurances, contracts, grants, legal issues '

o Policies and procedures development, problem solving

s Financial training and consultation

e Strategic and business planning

o Liaison with Board of Directors and Committees

'WORK HISTORY:

1994 — Present Caster Scals New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, NH
Senior Vice President ief Financial Officer
Oversee fiscal management for 100 million-dollar budget size,
multi-corporate, multi-state entity. Also, responsible for .
reception, maintenance, customer service fiinctions.

1988 - 1994 Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Vice President of Finance _

Responsible for finance functions and information systems
agency wide. Instrumental in major financial tumnaround from
$600,000 deficit in 1988 to $100,000 surplus in 1989 and
surpluses every year thereafter.

1984 — 1988 Easter Seal Saciety of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH
Controller
Promoted to position with added responsibilities of managing
billing function and staff. Converted financial applications to
integrated automated systems. Involved in corporate
reorganizations 1o multiple entities and external corporate
mergers and acquisitions.



Elin Treanor
work history cont’d

1982 - 1984

1981 - 1982

1980 - 1981

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Chief Accountant

Promoted to supervisory position to manage accounting,
payroll, payables, purchasing. Revised budget process, audit
work, procedures and monitoring systems.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Accountant :

Promoted to take charge of general ledger, reconciliations and
financial reporting. Established chart of accounts, fund
accounting system and internal controls.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH
Intermal Auditor
Handled accounts payable, cash flow, grant billing and review

1974 - 1980

EDUCATION:
1989

1980

1977

SERVICE:

National Easter Seals:

of general I&dger accounts.

Marshalls, Peabody, MA
Senior Clerk

Worked as cashier, customer service representative and
bookkeeper, while attending college.

New Hampshire College, Hooksett, NH
Masters in Business Administration

Bentley College, Waltham, MA.
Bachelor of Science, Accounting Major

North Shore Community College, Beverly, MA
Associates Degree, Accounting Major

Leader of Northeast Region Chief Financial Officers
Treasurer of Northeast Region Leadership Association
Past Chairman of the Quality Council



Tina M. Sharby, PIIR

Human Resources Professional with multi-state experience working as a stratcgic parmer in all
aspects of Human Resources Management.

~ Aveas of cxpertise include

Struny anatytical and organizational skills Problem solving and complaint resolution
Ability to manage multiple tasks simultaneously  Policy development and implementation
Employment Law and Regulation Compliance Compensation and benefits administration
Strategic managemenl, mergers and acquisitions

MS Office (Word, Excel, Outlook, PowerPoint), PeopleSoft, Oracle

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Senior Vice President Human Resources
Easter Seals, NH, VT, NY, ME, RI, Harbor Schools & Farnum Center

1993- Present

Reporting directly to the President with total human resources and administration.
Responsible for employee relations, recruitment and retention, compensation, benefits, -
risk management, health and safety, staff developmennt for over 2100 employees in a six
state not-for- profit organization, Developed and implemented human resources policies
to meet all organizational, state and federal requirements. Research and implemented an
organizational wide benefits plan that is supportive of on-boarding and retention needs.

Developed and implemented a due diligence research and analysis system for assessing
merger and acquisition oppommmes Partnered with senior staff team in preparation of

strategic planning initiatives.

Member of the organizations Compliance Committee, Wellness Committee and Risk
Management Committee. Attended various board meetings as part of the senior
management team, and sit on the investment committee of the Board of Directors for

Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Human Resources Director
Moore Center Services, Inc., Manchester, NH

. 1986-1998

Held progressively responsible positions in this not-for-profit organization of 450
employees. Responsible for the development and administration of all Human Resources
activities. Implemented key regulatory compliance programs and developed innovative



employee relations initiatives in a rapidly changing business environment, Lead the
expansion of the Human Resources department from basic benefit administration to
becoming a key advisor to the senior management.

Key responsibilities included benefit design, implementation and administration; workers
compensation administration; wage and salary administration, new employee orientation

and training; policy devclopment and communication; retirement plan administration;
budgetary development; and recruitment.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Scicnec Degree, Keene State College, 1986
Minor in Human Resources and Safety Management

MS Organizational Leadcrship, Southcrn NH University (in process)

———ORGANIZATIONS-

Manchester Area Human Resource Association
Diversity Chair 2010
Society for Human Resource Management

BIA Human Resources
Health Care & Workforce Development Committee 2009, 2010



Christina L. Lachance, M.Ed.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Over fifteen years of non-profit program executive management and administration experience
Successful multi-million dollar budget development, monitoring, and administration
A dynamic speaker, trainer, consultant and presenter at local, statewide and national conferences
Involvement in local, state, and federal early childhood education collaborations and initiatives
Passionate advocate for children and families living in poverty through community engagement and
collective impact
Excellent relationships with key health, child and family advocacy leaders, elected officials and
community members
Successful grant writer at local, state and federal level
Agile leadership that honors people and drives achievement through hard work and smart work
Believes in genuine collaboration towards needle-moving impact

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

EASTER SEALS NH, Manchester, NH
Vice President of Children’s Services, January 2012-present

Successfully lead the merger of Elliot Health System’s non-profit community education and health
programs in to Easter Seals NH

Responsible for oversight and management of statewide programs in New Hampshire and Rhode Island
serving over 4000 unduplicated patients per year. Programs include; Pediatric Medical Qutpatient
Services, Easter Seals Dental Centers, Early Intervention, Autism Neurological Services, Autism Family
Support programs, Early Childhood Development Centers, Family Resource Center and NH Child Care
Resource & Referral

Lead development and implementation of $30 million total budget in a multi-program environment,
with primary responsibility for service delivery cost centers

Negotiated and administered contracts related to service delivery, seeking the advice of legal counsel
and guidance of the CEO and the CFO as needed

Directed the implementation of Utilization Review and Utilization Management to ensure level of care
criteria are met and service delivery is appropriate for the needs of recipients and the requirements of
private insurance, Medicaid and private consumers

Ensured broad input into the development of the Strategic Plan and the specific objectives to achieve
results to support the mission, vision and values of the agency

Reviewed analysis of activities, cost, operations, metrics, and forecast data to determine progress toward
stated goals and objectives and amended direction and strategies as required

Collaborated with staff in the development, collection, and use of metrics to guide operations and results
for the people served and the organization

Communicated directly with employees throughout the agency to provide education regarding Mission,
Vision and values, key result areas and budget goals and outcomes

Represented and advocated for the organization in the community with political officials, business
contacts, the healthcare and education industries, the general public and the media

ELLIOT HEALTH SYSTEM /VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION OF MANCHESTER & SOUTHERN
NH INC/, Manchester, NH
Director of Child & Family Services (Executive Director), May 2004-2012 Merger with Easter Seals NH

Prepared and monitored annual $5 million budget including projected revenues, staffing plans and
operating expenses for multiple programs and facilities
Increased revenue generation through donor cultivation, corporate relationships and grant attainment



Collaborated with Board of Directors to develop strategic plans, mission statement revisions and fund
development plans

Successfully developed and monitored grants, contract proposals and training programs

Restructured Administration to improve program efficiency and effectiveness

Handled media relations, providing an accurate and concise portrayal of the organization’s positions on
current issues

Supervised Management Team and conducted annual performance reviews recognizing their strengths
and identifying areas needing improvement

Responsible for planning, development, training and implementation of strategic plan to meet the needs
of children and families in multiple facilities including; early childhood education, dental center,
nursing services, food services, parent education, adult basic education, GED programs and Family
Resource Center

Developed collaborations with Manchester Public Schools, Manchester Public Health Department,
Manchester Community Health Center, Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester Food Bank,
Manchester Police Department and other community partners

Evaluated Elliot Health Systems Community Service Programs and designed Quality Improvement
Plans to better meet the needs of children, families, and the community

Monitored administration and billing of New Hampshire Child Care Development Fund Scholarships
received by the organization from NH DCYF and USDA funds received from the NH DOE

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY, Manchester, NH
Lecturer: School of Education, January-December 2008, One Year Appointment
Ad]unct Faculty: School of Education, January 2006 to 2012

Taught undergraduate and graduate coursework including: Administration for Early Childhood
Education Programs, Health, Safety & Nutrition in Education, Research Methods, Family & Culture,
Role of the Family, Theories of Play and Cognitive Development

Developed syllabus for assigned course offerings, including required reading and writing assignments,
quizzes, exams, observations of children, and weekly class content

Provided accommodations for students with special needs

GIRL SCOUTS OF SWIFT WATER COUNCIL, Manchester, NH
Fund Development Director, August 2001-October 2003

Managed successful Annual Giving Campaign increasing overall donations and participation
Coordinated Annual Golf Tournament increasing revenue and corporate sponsorship each year
Successfully developed and monitored grants and contract proposals

Recruited and motivated Board Members to assist with fundraising efforts

Evaluated and reconfigured Raiser’s Edge fundraising software to maintain accurate donor base
Developed collateral for fund raising campaigns

Developed new systems for maintaining grant proposals

Coordinated internal United Way Campaign

GRANITE UNITED WAY, Manchester, NH
Director of Community Impact and Development, 2001

Revised and Implemented Fund Distribution Process for a multi-million dollar campaign
Reviewed grant applications and allocated resources appropriately

Monitored compliance of grants awarded to community agencies through the United Way
Supported Board Members with fundraising, fund distribution and donor cultivation

Facilitated Program Director meetings for United Way member agencies

Attended detailed training in Outcome Measurement and Fund Distribution

Developed Community Task Groups to evaluate and make recommendations on United Way systems
Served as a liaison between United Way and Greater Manchester Community Partners
Recruited and trained volunteers to assist in the Fund Distribution Process

Coordinated United Way Day of Caring, a corporate-community volunteer effort with over 600
participants



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC., Manchester, NH
Head Start Program Director for Hillsborough County, 1997-2000

Developed and Maintained $5 million budget for multiple Child Development Programs employing 120
staff and serving over 400 children throughout Hillsborough County

Governed and Managed the Head Start Program in accordance with local, state, and federal law
Supported and Trained Head Start Parent Policy Council members

Guided Hillsborough County’s Head Start Program through a successful Federal Performance Review
Monitored and purchased food, equipment and supplies as needed remaining under budget goals
Followed National Association for the Education of Young Children guidelines for program
development, curriculum and services for children with disabilities

Reported progress and federal updates to the Board of Directors

Developed grants and proposals at local, state, and federal levels to secure program funding
Supervised Managers and conducted annual performance reviews recognizing their strengths and
identifying areas needing improvement

Established and Executed Policy and Procedure Manual for Child Development Programs

Facilitated staff meetings with managers to establish communication systems

Collaborated with local human service agencies to negotiate written contracts

Developed a successful marketing and recruitment plan resulting in full enrollment

Represented Hillsborough County’s Head Start Program at state and national meetings and conferences

Early Head Start Program Manager/Education & Disabilities Manager

Pioneered and standardized the organization’s management structure and program design

Designed and Implemented a six-week training program for infant and toddler caregivers, including
curriculum, health, safety and nutrition in the classroom and parent involvement

Evaluated and selected curriculum and lesson plan design

Attended National Early Head Start training and orientation

Consulted with Architects in the desired layout for all infant/toddler classrooms

Cultivated community partnerships to provide coordinated services to families in need

Provided on-going training and supervision to managers, teachers, family workers, and volunteers

KINDERCARE LEARNING CENTERS, INC., North Andover, MA
Education Coordinator 1996-1997

Traveled to multiple locations to design and implement Quality Improvement Plans

Obtained & Maintained National Association for the Education of Young Children Accreditation
Supervised and Trained teachers and teacher assistants

Approved lessons plans submitted by Teachers

Monitored classrooms & programs for Developmentally Appropriate Practice across multiple sites
Scheduled staff to meet licensing requirements

Provided orientation and training to all new teachers across multiple sites

KEENE CHILD CARE CENTER, Keene, NH
Teacher, 1991-1996

Maintained proper paperwork for Child Care Development Fund Scholarships

Designed and implemented lesson plans for young children

Scheduled staff to meet licensing requirements

Coordinated programming for children with disabilities

Participated in all fundraising activities

Coordinated internal United Way Campaign

Coordinated Keene Child Care attendance at the first Stand for Children Rally in Washington, D.C.

EDUCATION, CERTIFICATION & AFFILIATIONS

Master of Education
Concentration in Administration and Child Development
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH



Bachelor of Science, Human Services
Concentration in Administration
Springfield College, Springfield, MA

Professional Education & Certification
NH Early Childhood Professional Development System Credential: Administrator, Level 4 & Master
Professional (Workshop Trainer, Faculty, Individual Mentor & Program Consultant) ~ NAPSAC (Childhood
Obesity Prevention) Certified Trainer~ Leading and Managing Not-for-Profit Organizations Coursework ~
Building Strong Boards Training ~ Logic Models & Outcome Measurement Training ~ Ellis Strategies Media
Training

Past & Present Professional Affiliations
2008-present: Granite United Way Community Impact Grant Review Team Member
2013-present: Granite United Way Community Impact Committee Member
Granite United Way Agency Speaker
Fall 2014-Manchester Neighborhood Health Improvement Strategy Leadership Team
Project LAUNCH Leadership Team Member
Early Reading First (Manchester School District) Advisory Board Member
Even Start (Manchester School District) Advisory Board Member
Southern New Hampshire University’s School of Education Advisory Board Member
Board of Directors, NH Association for the Education of Young Children (2006-2008)
NHAEYC 2006 Administrator’s Conference Fundraising Chair
New Hampshire Child Care Advisory Council Member
National Association for the Education of Young Children Member
Manchester Early Learning Team Advisory Board Member
Early Learning New Hampshire Member
SAU# 15 School Board Member
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Shannon M Farrell, DMD e Qﬁv{ I W
48 Bedford Road New Boston NH 03070203 6414790 (cellular) r\(\/ "
smfdmd@msn.com 1%

Experienced Dental Clinician

a  Maximizing value of people and resources in dental practices
s Ensuring effective use of pian resources within dental networks
e Accelerating cractice growth through integration of varied dental services

x  Motivating employees and building team culture by communicating business
philosophy and goals

Experience and Accomplishments
independent contractor 2009-present
Gentle Dental of Tilton, NH
Dunbarton Family Dental
Dental Arts of Bedford

Wellness Dental, Manchester NH 2006-3/2009

Clinical partner

Aspen Dental , West Springfield, MA 2003-2006

Managing Clinical Director

1st Advantage Dental, Northampton,MA 2002-2003(Nov-June)
Associate

NorthEast Dental, Manchester, CT 2001-2003

Chief Dentist

. Provide clinical and operational practice leadership for growth-oriented group dental
Practice management firm with muitiple locations.

. Provide clinical services, direct day-to-day practice operations and develop strategies

for patient retention. Manage employees in practice administration, laboratory, dental
services

P&R Dental Strategies, New York, New York December 2000-July 2001
Consultant

. Performed independent clinical reviews of insurance claims from private general

dental practices, including group practices, assuring quality and standard of dental
care compliance for major insurance carriers throughout the United States.



Practice owner 1995-2000
Associate dentist 1989-1995
Education

DMD 1985-1989 Tuft's University School of Dental Medicine,
1983-1985  Columbia University
AS. 1980-1982 University of Bridgeport,
Fones School of Dental Hygiene
CDA 1977-1978 Briarwood College

Professional licensure and certifications

. Licensed Dentist: MA, NY, CT(inactive) NH

. Registered: Federal DEA, MA Controlled substance
. CPR professional certificate

. Advanced dental implantology, Branemark system

. Invisalign Certified

. Mini implant Certified

Recognition
. Published: Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry-June, 1991
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Bethany Isleib

Education:

Granite State College:

Bachelor’s in Science of Psychology Current

NHTI:

Associates in Health Science May 2013
Certification in Dental Assisting May 2009
Work Experience:

Vachon Dental Current- Dec.2010

- Assist chairside in general dentistry
- Provide patient comfort and education to dental needs
- Fabrication of mouthguards, nightguards, implant stents, bleaching trays, and temporary

crowns
- Responsible for sterilizing instruments, inventory, and all infection control protocol in the
office including MSDS
3 Stone Dental Current- Feb.2012

- Secondary assistant responsible for restorative chairside procedures

- Provide patient comfort and education

- Responsibility for room preparation such as stocking and appropriate breakdown of the
room

Skills:

- CPR certified

- DANB certified

- Knowledge of Practiceworks, Eaglesoft, and Softdent software
- Knowledge of Waterlase hard and soft tissue laser

- A willingness to learn all aspects of dentistry

- Radiology Certified digital and film
Reference:
Dr. Shannon Farrell (203) 6414790

Dr. Jeffrey Vachon (603) 627-2092



Kara Malenfant

T (978)-569-3005 205
North Road

karamalenfant@hotmail.com Sandown,
NH 03873

PROFILE

Experienced Dental Assistant with two years of experience seeking for a full time/part time job. Passes
knowledge of Dentrix software, digital x-rays, and CEREC machine. CPR and radiology certified. Strong

communication, organization, and anticipation skills. Ability to handle multiple tasks in a fast paced
environment.

EDUCATION

Middlesex Community College
Lowell, MA

Associates in Science in Dental Assisting
May, 2013

Relevant Courses: Radiology, Preventive Dentistry, Dental Practice Management, Anatomy and
Physiology

EXPERIENCE

Plaistow Dental

Plaistow, NH

General Dentist

2012-2013

*Work chair side as dentist examine and treat patients.
*Provided patient comfort and obtain their dental records.
*Hand instruments/materials to dentist and keep patients’ mouth dry.
*Sterilize/disinfect instruments and equipment.

*Prepare patient procedures.

*Take impressions and poring models.

*Make digital FMX, PA, bite wings.

*Schedule patient appointments.

*Present patient oral after care instructions.

BayState Oral Surgery Lawrence/
Haverhill, MA

Oral and Maxillofacial Dentist

2012-2012

Internship

*Assists with dental surgeries.

*Sterilized/disinfect instruments and equipment.

*Made PA and PANO x-rays.

*Call insurance companies.

*Schedule patient appointments.



*Present patient oral after care instructions.

Bradford Orthodontics

Bradford, MA

Orthodontic Dentist

2012-2012

Internship

*Transferred instruments.

*Prepared dental materials.

*Taking bite registrations, impressions and poring models.
*Sterilize/disinfect instruments and operatory.
*Bracket set up.

*Separator placement.

*Tooth preparation.

*Wire removal and placement.

*Presented patient oral after care instructions.



Ellen Therrien

Education:
New Hampshire Community Technical Institute . Concord NH September 2006- May 2009
Associate’s Degree of Science in Dental Hygiene Graduated 5/15/2009

Honors, SADHA Community Service Member

Licensure and Credentials:
» New Hampshire Registered Dental Hygienist License
» Northeast Regional Board Certified
» New Hampshire Local Anesthesia License
» CPR Certified

Professional Experience:
Easter Seals Dental Center Manchester, NH August 2009-Present
Dental Hygienist
* Provide initial and recall patient care, oral prophylaxis, routine radiographs, treatment planning, sealants, oral
hygiene instruction, dental and periodontal charting with Dentrix, accurate record keeping, sterilization, ordering
supplies, strict adherence to OSHA safety guidelines.
» Treatment of wide variety of patients including those with special needs, disabilities, and the elderly.

Dr. Hoertdoetfer Manchester, NH August 2013-Present
Dental Hygienist

Moo’s Place Homemade Ice Cream Derry, NH April 2004- Oct 2010

Manager

* Oversee and supervise staff, customer service, interview and train new employees, cash control, open/close facility
* Respond to and resolve customer complaints, inventory control
* Handle multiple tasks in a fast paced environment maintaining clean working environment

Relevant Experience:
Merrimack Valley High School Penacook, NH Spring 2009

Dental Hygiene-Externship

* Performed complete prophylaxis on adolescents, mentored youths on care and prevention of oral disease and
overall systemic health

* Demonstrated proper homecare for effective plaque removal, complete and accurate documentation of
procedures performed )

New Hampshire Department of Corrections Concord, NH Winter 2008

Dental Hygiene-Externship

* Performed complete prophylaxis on inmates, gave guidance and education on utilization of available oral health
aids at correctional facility

Dental Hygiene Clinic - New Hampshire Community Technical Institute Concord, NH 2007-2009

* Complete prophylaxis, sealants, local anesthesia, digital radiographs, impressions, scheduling, use of Dentrix

Community Service:

Special Olympic Dental Screenings at UNH

Dental Health Education for preschoolers

Oral Health Fair at Rockingham County Nursing Home
Oral Health Presentations for 5" Graders

Volunteer Children’s Clinic at NHTI , Concord N.H

Lol B I S

References furnished upon request



State of Nefo Hampslire

Board of Dental Examiners

SHANNON M FARRELL, DMD

Active Lic #: 03568
Issued:  11/09/2006
Expircs:  04/30/2016

2 oy, POF-

President
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The Dental Assisting National Board, Inc.
hereby attests that

Bethany A Isleib
Certified D:n:al Assistant

Cert#: 204152 Expires: 08/18/2014

www.danb.org * 1-800-367-3262
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. The Bourd of Trustees in wnnanwm.ﬁﬁ foth E.n ﬁnnn&gwu»su& the Haoulty md thre Presidend
and foith the mudhority coderred by the Bond of Higher Tducation
hereby afomrds to ._ .
- Kara 1. Malenfant
| the begree of
Axgociute in Srience
. in Bental Asgsisting
Girent tlts tinexchy-thicd duy of My, 2013.
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UNIVERSITY

Tufts

School of
Dental Medicine

This is to certify that

HQ:.» Malenfant

has successfully completed the Radiology Certification Course
- and passed the examination required under 234 CMR 2.04 (12)
by the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Dentistry.

Spring 2013 — 16 Credit Hours

7 Dr. AudreyFurkart
Pormer Associats Clintcal Professor, Division of Oral and Madliofacial Radiology




State of Netw Hampshire

Board cf Dental Examiners

ELLEN M THERRIEN, RDH

Activelic i (12848
Issued; 0672412009
Expires:  04/30/2015

H&MQ_L%'_ D

Lixeceiive Sceretary



Subject: New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number 0595=90=902616-5240-162-
603-752-7001 5601-

05-95-90-902510-2229-]

1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

June 30, 2016
30-500371

$200,000

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Brook Dupee, Bureau Chief

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

603 271 4483

1.11 Contractor Signature

Vet ud Can U

112 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michael Coughlin, CEO

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of , County of _Coos

6-23-14
On___,

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[sm%/?ffww c W

1.13.2  Name and ($itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace SUZANNE C. FRENCH
Notary Public - New
Suzanne C. French, Notary My pires June 19,2018
1.14 State A, Slgnature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
> Brook Dupee, Bureau Chief
7 (\}/\F)%‘g\ i

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (i if applzcable)

By: Director, On:

117 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

/e A gl - sy

1.18 Approval by the Goyarnor and Executive Cbuncil

By:

ol
1

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: \M c

Date:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Program Name: New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program
1.1. Purpose:

The purpose of this agreement is to perform necessary dental treatment for clients enrolled
in the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program (NH CARE Program). The goal of the
NH CARE Program is to provide financial assistance for necessary dental treatment and
other oral health services, to uninsured and underinsured New Hampshire (NH) residents
living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), statewide.

2. Provision of Services:

2.1. The Contractor shall act as a representative of the NH CARE Program to provide
preventive and restorative dental care to uninsured and underinsured NH CARE
Program clients.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide services to enrolled NH CARE Program clients only;
services provided outside of enroliment periods will not be reimbursed.

2.3. The Contractor shall refer clients to tHeir Medical Case Manager as needed to re-enroll
in the NH CARE Program.

2.4. The Contractor shall invoice NH CARE Program for services using a health insurance
claim form or reasonable facsimile; additional invoicing methods may be approved by
the NH CARE Program.

2.5. The Contractor shall invoice NH CARE Program according to the NH CARE Program
Dental Fee Schedule; request approval for additional services through the Contract
Monitor.

2.6. The Contractor shall participate in an annual site visit with NH CARE Program staff.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide client level data as requested by the NH CARE Program,
for the completion of annual reports to the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA).

2.8. The Contractor shall maximize billing to NH Medicaid and private dental insurance. The
NH CARE Program shall be the payer of last resort and will only reimburse services for
uninsured and underinsured clients.

3. Licensing Requirements:

Dentist(s) performing services under this agreement must possess a current dental license
issued by the State of New Hampshire Board of Dental Examiners.

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists Contractor Initials Ua C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit A

4. Dental providers shall adhere to the NH CARE Program Standards of Care for Oral Health
Services, and all applicable Programmatic, Fiscal and Universal Monitoring Standards, as
documented by the HRSA:

e http://hab.hrsa.gov/manageyourgrant/files/programmonitoringpartb.pdf
¢ http://hab.hrsa.gov/manageyourgrant/files/fiscalmonitoringpartb.pdf
¢ http://hab.hrsa.gov/imanageyourgrant/files/universalmonitoringpartab.pdf

5. The Department of Health and Human Services reserves the right to discontinue this
agreement should it discover any abridgment of the above partner agreements that
jeopardize the intent of this agreement.

6. Entire Agreement:

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and they
constitute the entire Agreement between the State and the Contactor. General Provisions
(P-37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Dental Fee
Schedule, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional special Provisions, Exhibit D
Cortication Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying,
Exhibit F Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance, Exhibit H
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health Insurance
Portability Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit J Certification
Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Compliance. In the
event of any conflict of contradiction between or among the Agreement Documents, the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists Contractor Initials \AA (&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control shall reimburse the Contractor for actual dental
service(s) provided by the contractor to enrolled NH CARE Program clients. Reimbursement
shall be based on the NH CARE Program Dental Fee Schedule identified in Exhibit B-1.

2. Price Limitation. This Agreement is one of multiple Agreements that will serve NH Ryan
White CARE Program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the price limitation among all Agreements is identified in Block 1.8 of the P-37
for the duration of the Agreement.

3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contactor agrees that payment under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactorily compieted in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

4. The funding source for this Agreement for Dental Services is 100% Other Funds from the
Pharmaceutical Rebates.

5. Contract dentists shall complete and submit a Dental Claim invoice, due within 30 days.
Completed invoice must be submitted to:

NH CARE Program

Bureau of Infectious Disease Control
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-4934

6. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available. Contractor will keep detailed records of their dental
services related to Department of Health and Human Services funded programs and
services.

7. Dentists are accountable to meet the scope of services. Failure to meet the scope of
services may jeopardize the funded Dentist's current and/or future funding. Corrective action
may include actions such as a contract amendment or termination of the contract.

NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists Contractor Initiais WC’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH-Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists

Exhibit B-1
NH CARE Program Dental Fee Schedule 2014 - 2015
Code Procedure Fee
D0120 | Periodic oral evaluation 41.00
D0140 | Limited oral evaluation 60.00
D0150 | Comprehensive oral evaluation 62.00
D0210 | Intraoral-complete series 96.00
D0220 | Intraoral-Periapical 1st film 15.00
D0230 | Intraoral-Periapical each additional 10.00
D0270 | Bitewings - Xray 17.00
D0272 | Bitewings - two fiims 25.00
D0274 | Bitewings - four films 45.00
D0330 | Panoramic film 83.00
D1110 | Prophylaxis adult 85.00
D1120 | Prophylaxis child 38.00
D2140 | Amalgam - 1 surface 150.00
D2150 | Amalgam - 2 surface 155.00
D2160 | Amalgam - 3 surface 180.00
D2161 | Amalgam - 4/4+ surface 200.00
D2330 | Resin-1 surface anterior 131.00
D2331 | Resin-2 surface anterior 143.00
D2332 | Resin-3 surface anterior 147.00
D2335 | Resin-4/4+ surface anterior 165.00
D2391 | Resin-1 surface posterior 150.00
D2392 | Resin-2 surface posterior 155.00
D2393 | Resin-3 surface posterior 180.00
D2394 | Resin-4/4+ surface posterior 200.00
D2940 | Sedative Filling 75.00
D4341 | Scaling and root planing (per quadrant) 100.00
D4355 | Full mouth debridement 90.00
D4910 | Periodontal Maintenance 120.00
D5110 | Complete denture-maxillary 800.00
D5120 | Complete denture-mandibular 800.00
D5130 | Immediate denture-maxillary 875.00
D5140 | Immediate denture-mandibular 875.00
D5211 | Maxillary partial-resin base 600.00
D5212 | Maxillary partial-resin base 600.00
NH Ryan White CARE Program Licensed Dentists Contractor Initials qu.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit B-1

D5213 | Max partial-cast metal w/resin 1,300.00
D5214 | Mand partial-cast metal w/resin 1,200.00
D5410 | Adjust complete denture, maxillary 50.00
D5411 | Adjust complete denture, mandibular 50.00
D5421 | Adjust partial denture, maxillary 50.00
D5422 | Adjust partial denture, mandibular 50.00
D5520 | Replace denture teeth 127.00
D5670 | Replace All Teeth/Acrilic on cast metal framework$359 359.00
D5750 | Reline complete maxillary denture 244.00
D5751 | Reline complete mandibular denture 244.00
D7140 | Extraction-erupted/exposed 150.00
D7210 | Extraction-surgical-imp bony 225.00
D7240 | Removal of Impacted Tooth 348.00
D7310 | Alveoloplasty - per quaddrant 275.00
D7472 | Removal of torus palatinus Mandibular - 2 quadrants 400.00
D5760 | Reline maxillary parital denture 99.00
D5761 | Reline mandibular partial denture 99.00
D9110 | Palliative Tx of Dental Pain 33.00
D9220 | Gen anesthesia {(first 30 minutes) 100.00
D9221 | Gen anesthesia (each additional 15 minutes) 40.00
D9241 | Intravenous Conscious Sedation/first 30 min 100.00
D9242 | Intravenous Conscious Sedation/ea add'l 30 min 40.00
D9310 | Dental Consultation 68.00
D9612 | Parenteral Drug Injection {$77 each) 77.00
D9940 | Mouth Guard 110.00
Additional services may be approved by DHHS on a case by case basis
R:\OCPH\FCH\STDHIV\Group\CARE Program\Policy & Procedures\Dental
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonabie and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials \Mg
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include ali records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goais and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shali retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principies established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitied "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPQSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shali mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of impiementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailabie.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the
State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to
terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but
not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall inciude the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

3. Extension:
This agreement has the option for a potential extension of up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Council.

4. Insurance:
Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the following subparagraph is
added:
14.1.1 Comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in
amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence and umbrella liability
coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 per occurrence.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the reguiations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pieasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or wili continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying emplioyees that the uniawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Empiloyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, uniess the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials\}'\(
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

6-23-14 | \)\N\ru-\i &V\ LL

Date Name: Michael C(j§ghlin
Title:  chief Executive Officer

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials % a‘{(
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title [V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
_modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shali require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

oo Conl

Date Name: Michael Cough;in

Title: Chief Executiye Officer

Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4, The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

» U " our

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligibie, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligibie, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials‘_’l_‘k L
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Exhibit F

10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1.

12.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13.

14.

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {(contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective tower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

6-23-14 \)\JUL w\k Cd A\ u,

Date Name: Michael Couphlin

Title: Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonabie efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

6-23-14 w Ca—‘-\ k_;

Date Name: Michael Coughlin
Title: Chief Execuffive Officer

Exhibit G ~ Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

6-23-14 \)\)\m& Cm/\\ A

Date . Name: Michael Coughlin
Titte:  Chief Execut}ve Officer

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor InitialsW c

Environmental Tobacco Smoke
CU/DHHS/02142014 Page 1 of 1 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Exhibit 1 — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Business Associate Agreement does not
apply to this contract.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials m (/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPPNoO~LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

June 23-14 \)\)v—w\Q CJ"/\\}\

Date Name: Michael Coughlin
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials\AA‘L
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _ 073975708

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding compieted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials MC/
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State of Nefv Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY
CAP) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 18, 1965. 1 further certify
that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and

paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
W this 3 day of April A.D. 2014

ey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

, Gary Couiombe, do hereby certify that:

I
{Neme of the slected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory:

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc..
{(hgency Name;

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 2-25-2014:
{Date)

RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 23th day of June, 2014,
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Michael Coughlin is the duly elected Chief Executive Officer of the Agency.

I8N £ e < - SR ! = 5 B Vet A T v
{Name of Contract Signatory} {Title of Contract Signatory)

S

(Shnature of the Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Coos

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 23th day of June, 2014,

By Gary Coulombe.
{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

Commission Expires: June 19, 2018

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 8/19/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER m&” Karen Shaughnessy
FIAI/Cross Insurance [PHONE " (603) 669-3218 | A% oy (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street ADOREss:kshaughnessy@crossagency . com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 INsuRerA:Arch Ins Co 11150
INSURED insUReErB Maine Employers Mutual Ins Co.
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc INSURER C :
30 Exchange Street INSURERD ;

INSURERE :
Berlin NH 03570 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL1471714530 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDU CED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MR TYPE OF INSURANCE m POLICY NUMBER (m/"r':%vaFF _&_%%W‘v% LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Eégﬁ%%g?g’;%!w“%m) $ 100,000
A | cLams-maoe @ OCCUR CPCKG0328200 [7/22/2014 [1/1/2015 | \MEDEXP (Any oneperson) | § 5,000
- F PERSONAL & ADVINJURY [ § 1,000,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 3,000,000
YJ POLICY I—I RO |_| LOC $
AUTOMOBLE LaBLTY COBRED SR T | 000000
A i ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
B le-ngVNED ﬁS?gsDULED CAUT0328200 [7/22/2014 [7/1/2015 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
HIRED AUTOS 28?‘0‘?5"""“ r PPRetr);’gcri?Je\rf’ tI)DAMAGE s
Underinsured motorist $ 1,000,000
| {umsreLLaLme | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
B | X | EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
pep | | ReTENTIONS NCFX$0328200 7/22/2014 [1/1/2015 s
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION 5102801186 X [ ooimrsl T8
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
ér;;rl gggﬁgﬁggg/&mwcuﬂvs E NIA (3a.) NH . E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
(Mandatory in NH) pll officers included [7/1/2014  [7/1/2015 g DSEASE - EA EMPLOYES § 500,000
DRSO OF GPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A | Professional Liability NCPCKG0328200 [7/22/2014 [7/22/2015 | Per Occurence $1,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DES CRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
. ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NH Dept of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857 AUTHORRZED REPRESENTATIVE
Laura Perrin/KS5 7 ; Ao~ )ﬂ_aw.w‘—
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

INS025 >01005) 01 The ACORN nama and lann ara renictarad marke Af ACORN




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Todd C. Fahey, Esq.

Court-Appointed Special Trustee and

The Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire 03570

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theses financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financials are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As more fully described in Note B to the financial statements, Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. had not previously classified the difference between its assets and liabilities as
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The effects on the financial
statements of that departure from those accounting principles are not reasonably determinable.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. as of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note P to the financial statements, the 2012 financial statements have been
restated to correct a misstatement. Qur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplemental schedule of functional expenses (pages 26-29) and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards on (pages 30-35), as required by Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
31, 2014, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.



Sincerely,
] asov st—Aict,, PAH-

MASON + RICH PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
Certified Public Accountants
Concord, New Hampshire

March 31, 2014



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
2013 2012
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 88,679 § .
Accounts Receivable 966,287 626,033
Inventories 65,023 99,759
Due From Insurance 41,353 -
Prepaid Expenses 16,052 -
Other Assets 1,320 -
Total Current Assets 1,178,714 725,792
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property, Plant and Equipment 10,937,228 10,585,785
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,954,459) (3,410,650)
Net Property and Equipment 6,982,769 7,175,135
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted Cash 631,525 442,275
Other Assets - 46,174
Total Other Assets 631,525 488,449

TOTAL ASSETS $ 8.793.008 § 8.389.376

(Continued on next page)

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
- Page 4 -



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Current Portion of Lease Payable
Line of Credit
Bank Overdraft
Accounts Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Expenses
Other Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
Lease Payable, Net of Current Portion
Interest Rate Swap at Fair Value

Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted'
Unrestricted - Board Designated
Temporarily Restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2013 2012
313,590 $ 3,337,972
35,874 30,067
685,587 793,976
. 8,046
1,245,898 1,001,434
260,353 406,689
77,408 114,987
117,657 14,753
467,840 630,759
3,204,207 6,338,683
4,602,933 930,918
5,410 39,603
82,650 114,433
4,690,993 1,084,954
7,895,200 7,423,637
(250,495) (375,462)
22,781 -
1,125,522 1,341,201
897.808 965,739
8.793.008 § 8380376

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements

- Page 5 -



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Grants and Contracts $ 13,350,557 § 268,289  $ 13,618,846
Program Funding 1,506,303 1,506,303
Utility Programs 1,590,891 1,590,891
In-Kind Contributions 695,449 695,449
Contributions 311,018 478,531 789,549
Fundraising 30,265 - 30,265
Rental Income 609,832 - 609,832
Interest Income 723 - 723
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 31,280 31,280
Other Revenue 142,317 142,317
Total Support and Revenues 18,268,635 746,820 19,015,455
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION
Expiration of Program Restrictions 962,499 (962,499) -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Agency Fund 1,034,468 1,034,468
Headstart 2,521,533 - 2,521,533
Guardianship 757,207 757,207
Transportation 1,226,314 - 1,226,314
Volunteer 128,489 - 128,489
Workforce Development 459,244 459,244
AOD 1,361,031 1,361,031
Carroll County Dental 649,067 649,067
Carroll County Restorative Justice 189,210 189,210
Support Center 247,906 - 247,906
Homeless 550,703 550,703
Energy & Community Development 8,650,600 8,650,600
Elder 1,339,397 - 1,339,397
Total Operating Expenses 19,115,169 19,115,169
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS 115,965 (215.679) (99,714)
OTHER INCOME
Gain on Interest Rate Swap 31.783 31,783
TOTAL CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 147,748 (215,679) (67,931)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year (375,462) 1,341,201 965.739
Net Assets, End of Year $ (227714 §$ 1.125522 §  897.808

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements

(Continued on next page)

-Page 6 -



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Grants and Contracts $ 15,732,761 $ 686,718 $ 16,419,479
Program Funding 1,935,620 - 1,935,620
Utility Programs 671,725 671,725
In-Kind Contributions 411,442 411,442
Contributions, as restated 266,155 405,470 671,625
Fundraising 54,929 54,929
Rental Income 44,496 44,496
Interest Income 884 - 884
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 2,247 - 2,247
Other Revenue 212,551 212,551
Total Support and Revenues 19,332,810 1,092,188 20,424,998
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION
Expiration of Program Restrictions - -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Agency Fund 1,515,511 - 1,515,511
Headstart 2,522,460 - 2,522,460
Guardianship 814,151 814,151
Transportation 1,055,705 1,055,705
Volunteer 129,170 129,170
Workforce Development 534,984 534,984
AQD 1,545,026 1,545,026
Carroll County Dental 595,841 595,841
Carroll County Restorative Justice 261,197 261,197
Support Center 311,910 311,910
Homeless 908,177 908,177
Energy & Community Development 9,619,568 9,619,568
Elder 1,326,239 1,326,239
Total Operating Expenses 21,139,939 - 21,139,939
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS (1,807,129) 1,092,188 (714,941)
OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on Interest Rate Swap 44,620 44,620
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS, AS RESTATED (1,851,749) 1,092,188 (759,561)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year as Previously Reported 2,235,260 2.235,260
Prior Period Adjustment, see Note P (758,973) 249,013 (509,960)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as Restated 1,476,287 249.013 1.725,300
Net Assets, End of Year $ (375462) % 1341201 § 965739

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements

-Page 7 -



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in Net Assets $ (67,931) § (759,561)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 577,373 510,568
Gain on Disposal of Property (64,834) (2,247)
Gain (Loss) on Interest Rate Swap (31,783) 44,620
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Restricted Deposit Account - Guardianship (189,250) (442,275)
Accounts Receivable (340,254) 401,365
Inventories 34,736 (20,726)
Due From Insurance (41,353) -
Prepaid Expenses (16,052) -
Other Assets 44,854 (13,558)
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Bank Overdraft (8,046) (222,316)
Accounts Payable 244,452 323,594
Accrued Compensated Absences (146,336) 11,789
Accrued Salaries (37,579) 8,387
Accrued Expenses 102,904 53,608
Other Liabilities (162,919) 630,759
Deferred Revenue - (670,752)
Total Adjustments (34.087) T 612,816
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (102,018) (146,745)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Disposal of Property 31,280 2,247
Purchase of Property and Equipment (351,441) (324,989)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (320,161) (322,742)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from Line of Credit (108,389) 272,036
Repayment of Long-Term Debt (139,860) (107.411)
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 787,493 143,000
Repayment of Capital Lease Obligation (28,386) (25,288)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 510,858 282,337
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 88,679 (187,150)
Cash and Equivalents, Beginning of Year - 187.150
Cash and Equivalents, Eud of Year $ 88679 8
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash Paid During the Year For:
Interest 3 260,615 $ 222,133

See Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
-Page § -



MISSION STATEMENT

Tri-County CAP is a group of people and projects
dedicated to improving the lives and well-being
of New Hampshire's people and communities.

We provide opportunities and support
for people to learn and grow in self-sufficiency,
and to get involved in helping their neighbors
and improving the conditions in their communities.

Tri-County Community Action Programs...
Helping people, changing lives.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc. Isa
private, non-profit 501(C) 3 corporation that is dedicated to
improving the lives and well being of New Hampshire’s people
and communities. Formed on May 18, 1965, we provide
opportunities and support for people to learn and grow in
self-sufficiency and get involved in helping their neighbors and
improving the conditions in their communities.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc.

...Helping people, changing lives.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM Inc.

Serving Coos, Carroll & Grafton Counties

30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570 - (603) 752-7001 « Toll Free: 1-800-552-4617 + Fax: (603) 752-7607
Website: http://www.tccap.org ¢+ E-mail: admin@tccap.org
Chief Executive Officer: Michael W. Coughlin

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FY2014
COOS COUNTY CARROLL COUNTY GRAFTON COUNTY
Board Chair Anne Barber Nancy Kitchen
Sandy Alonzo Attorney Animal Trainer-
Teacher Squam Lakes Science Center
Treasurer Vice Chair Shannon Weaver
Cathy Conway Sam Farrington, Community Volunteer
Vice President- Economic Attorney
Development - NCIC
Michael Dewar

Secretary Business Owner
Gary Coulombe
Firefighter

Weatherization Administration Community Contact Energy Programs

(603) 752-7105 (603) 752-7001 (603) 752-3248 (603) 752-7100

AOD
(603) 752-7941

R.S.V.P.
(603) 752-4103



Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Michael Coughlin Chief Executive Officer $140,000 0.00% $0

Robert Boschen Chief Financial Officer $100,000 0.00% $0

Dr. Christopher Kempton | Dentist $135,000 | 0.00% $0

Crystal Buswell Dental Hygienist $41,472 0.00% $0




MICHAEL W. COUGHLIN, M.S.
R ——— | —"
SEE——

Chief Executive - Nonprofit Sector
Complex, Multi-Site Operations <+ Revenue & Margin Growth
Strategic Partnerships
Community & Public Engagement

Motivating and results driven; recognized for;
v Strategic planning and financial management v’ Entrepreneurial spirit
v Mentoring & developing inspired leaders v' Assuring highest quality standards
v" Innovation, marketing and branding v’ Passionate advocacy for mission

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Social Work - Columbia University, New York, New York
Bachelor of Arts - Quinnipiac University, Hamden, Connecticut

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

REHABILITATIVE RESOURCES, INC. 2012 - 2013
One of the larger agencies providing services to people with developmental disabilities in
Massachusetts. Serving hundreds of clients in 44 residential facilities, employment supports and
day habilitation programs all over the state. $25 million in annual revenue and over 600 full and
part-time staff.

e CEO

Recruited to this position at an agency in need of change, in a time of distress. Followed a 31-year
CEQ, and reporting to a Board of Directors that expects transformation. Re-configured the senior
leadership team, designed a five-year strategic planning process, and began agency-wide healing
and cultural re-invigoration.

« Organizational Development: Leveraged the agency's considerable reputational and
financial assets into distinct advantages in preparing for its 5-year strategic pian.
» Met nearly every employee directly, either through individual team meeting visits, or
through three regional town hall-style events, the first time this has happened.
« lLaunched company-wide strategic planning process, invoiving stakeholders at every
level and region of the organization.

» Executive Development: Reorganized senior management team into a streamlined,
truly decision-making group. Set the conditions and expectations to become a high
performing team. Secured executive coaching for leaders where necessary.

« Community and Market Development: Met with ail major funders to understand their
perceptions of the company, and to re-set a new focus on customer service excellence.
Performed evaluations of the competitive environment, and began to build strategic
coalitions with potential pariners for new business.



MICHAEL W. COUGHLIN, M.S. Resume Page Two

ARIZONA’S CHILDREN ASSOCIATION 201110 2012
Arizona’s oldest multi-service nonprofit, located in every county in the state, serving over 45,000
children and families every year in over 20 different programs, inciuding behavioral heaith,
substance abuse, foster care. $40 million in annual revenue and nearly 750 full and part-time staff.

» CEO
Recruited to this position as successor to a 20-year CEQ. Executed a financial fumaround: moving
a projected $750,000 deficit to break-even status within five months.

s Organizational Development: Stabilized financials and worked with Board and staff to
create an aggressive five-year plan for growth:
- Engaged program leaders, Finance team and fundraising fo overcome previous year’s
losses and improve performance in tuming around current year financials.
- Re-organized senior program leaders from regional structure to lines of business,
resulting in much better program consistency and communication with staff.

s Executive Development: Empowered Executive team to make decisions without micro-
managing. Created an environment where creativity and execution exist side by side.

« Community Relations: Reached out to community leaders, funders, donors, competitors
and potential partners. Made sure to be accessible, to offer our agency's support.

GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND 2007 to 2010
Serving Maine, New Hampshire and Vermont, with $80 miiion in annual revenue. Employing 1400
people and serving over 20,000 individuals per year with services including developmental
disability, brain injury and behavioral health. 25 stores and 30 program locations in three states,

» CEO
Recruited to this position to create and execute a new strategic plan. increased annual revenue by
$20 million in three years to $60 million. Doubled the number of clients served during the same
period. Greatly improved employee and community relations.

¢ Organizational Development: Created Goodwill's strategic plan for Board approval,
carried out its plans and achieved exceptional results:

- Grew state and federal revenue by $10 million per year through increases in grants, fees
and phitanthropy.
- Maximized growth of retail business, earning $10 million in new profitable revenue
. amually within three years.
- Initiated and implemented two acquisitions of other nonprofits.
- increased agency margins each year, exceeding $1.9 million in F.Y. 2010.
- Championed new initiatives in quality improvement, employee relations and safety.

+ Executive Development: Stabilized and grew a strong executive team, breaking down
silos to achieve trust and true team performance. Created ieaming opportunities and career
development for staff at all levels.

o Community and Government Relations: increased Goodwill's profile through improved
marketing, branding and partnerships with other organizations. Buift strong relations with
Departments of Health and Human Services, Attomey General's Office and Congressional
delegations. Greatly expanded engagement with volunteers.



MICHAEL W. COUGHLIN, M.S. Resume Page Three

GENESIS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, Laconia, New Hampshire 2002 to 2007
One of ten community mental health programs licensed by the Division of Behavioral Health in
New Hampshire. $8 million organization provides comprehensive mental health care.

» Executive Director

Recruited to this organization to assume management responsibility and impiement an
aggressive tumaround. Guided management team to drive growth and service quality. Grew
revenue by 35%, generating over $1 million in new margins, in a time of shrinking state funds.

= Organizational DeveJopment: Directed organizational analysis, strategic planning and
company-wide initiatives. Returned organization and balance sheet to fiscal health.

s Executive Devejopment: Led a successful management restructuring, stabilizing the
executive team. Helped Board of Directors become a stronger, more cohesive group.

« Community & Government Relations: Built a bridge to community and govemment
through marketing and education events as well as personal contacts.

WARREN SHEPELL CONSULTANTS, Toronte, Ontario 2000 to 2001
One of Canada'’s leading behavioral health firms, supporting 1500+ client organizations and
generating $35 million annually. Ranked one of "50 best managed private companjes in Canada” by
Arthur Andersen and Financial Post.

» Vice President, Operations

Managed nation-wide counseling operations provided by mental health professionals and para-
professionals. Managed a $19 million budget.

» Staffing: Led a national network of over 1100 Doctorate and Master's level professionals,
providing service to over 70,000 clients per year

» Service / Network Management & Expansjon: Directed the management of 28 offices

coast to coast, to support new contracts. Played key role in 18% one-year revenue growth
and 20% profit margins.

« Business Development & PR: Participated in sales efforts, resulting in winning key
accounts. Represented company as a media spokespersor.

CHC- WORKING WELL, Mississauga, Ontario 1989 to 2000
One of Canada’s largest behavioral health providers. Contracts with 1200+ client organizations,
generating $30 million annually.

> Vice President, Research & Development - 1998 toc 2000
> National Director, Client Services - 1995 to 1998
> Regional Manager, Client Services - 1993 to 1995
» Area Manager, Client Services - 1991 to 1993
» Employee Assistance Counselor - 1989 to 1991

Extensive Board service involvement



Robert Boschen, Jr., CMA, MBA

SUMMARY/OBJECTIVE

F7Professional with excellent managerial, analytical, financial and teamwork skills. 7Able to take the lead or supporting
role on crucial projects. =7 Accustomed to tight, rapid deadiines and innovative, proactive and reactive work environments.
> Can adjust to varied software systems and research situations rapidly, and able to teach a team to do so. F=7Seek
professional managerial/analytical operations position within driving distance of North Conway, New Hampshire.

SKILLS/ABILITIES

= Certified Management Accountant (CMA). a

Z7Goal oriented manager with ability to manage assigned budget.

=~ Ability to supervise and manage staff to set and achieve directed goals.

=~ Comfortable working with all levels of staff and management. O

= Ability to implement, manage and direct crucial programs — financial and operational.

7Excellent analytical abilities - including capital budgeting, cost/benefit analysis, and benchmarking analysis.
Z7Detailed exposure to mergers and acquisitions. ~7Can coordinate purchasing and Requisition for Proposals.
=7 Manufacturing (cost accounting), construction, governmental and service industry exposure.

£~Knowledge of internal and external corporate and governmental reporting needs.

E7Worked on and led various projects which saved employers sizable tax and operating expense dollars.

7 Can construct complete accounting/reporting system. ~7Can implement controls related to accounting and systems.
F7Excellent with mainframe and PC based software packages including Excel, PowerPoint, and Access.

WORK EXPERIENCE 4 :
Town of Faimouth Falmouth, Maine
Director of Finance August 2011 -Present

O Responsible for financial operations and reporting related to the $11 million budget for the Town — population 11,165
A vibrant coastal town in Maine, in 2011 Falmouth was among the “Top Cities to Live and Learn” in the United
States, according to the second-annual national ranking released by Forbes Magazine.

O Finance area includes, but is not limited payroll, budgeting, accounting, purchasing, investments and financial
analysis/forecasting.  Report directly to Town Manager. O On the Senior Management Team.

O Responsible for and prepared the Town CAFR (Comprehensive Amual Financial Report). Have received the
Government Finance Officers Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for fiscal year 2011 and 2012. Presently
will outsource part of this to free up more time for strategic planning/special projects.

0 Responsible for financial presentation to Standard and Poor’s — Credit rating raised from AA+ to AAA.

0 Decentralized/reassigned clerical finance duties such as property tax bill creation, payroll and invoice entry out to
entitywide clerical workers. Finance, through a bookkeeper and accountant, now supervises/coordinates such duties.

0 Decentralized budgeting and purchasing duties entitywide - creating more accountability for the departments.
Finance and Administration now supervises/coordinates such duties.

O Restructured the Finance department and positions within it. Prior staff duties of the Finance Director, such as bank

reconciliations and high level monthly financial reports have been moved to staff in order to allow the Finance

Director to manage. Replaced the Budget & Purchasing Director with a Staff Accountant.

Created a reporting system that allows departments to run their own financial reports and at any time.

Created five year forecasting model.  [Rerformed Requests for Proposal that led to new banking partner.

Manage financial staff and all their duties. (Besponsible for government financial reports.

Responsible for staff that coordinates the MUNIS system. Major version upgrade occurred at the time of my arrival.

Finance Department budget is $250K. C Responsible for the accounts payable for the combined City/School budget

of $42 million. [1 Responsible for investments of $30 million.

uoooo

City of Waterville Waterville, Maine
Director of Finance/Treasurer October 2006 — August 2011

0 Responsible for financial operations and reporting related to the $16 million budget for the City — population 15,600 -
a service center that expands to roughly 40,000 during the work day. Finance area includes, but is not limited to tax
and fee collections, payroll, budgeting, accounting and financial analysis/forecasting, lien procedures and
investments.
Report directly to City Manager. O On the Senior Management Team.
Responsible for and prepare the City CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report).
Manage financial staff and all their duties. [Responsible for government financial reports.
Responsible for financial presentation to Standard and Poor’s — Credit rating raised from A- to A+
Responsible for staff that coordinates the MUNIS system. Modules include but are not limited to G/L, payroll, fixed
assets, billing, and accounts payable. System implementation began at the time of my arrival.
Finance Department budget is $450K. O Interact with all levels of City government.

Raannnaibla far the arcraunte navahle and navrnll far the ramhmed Cire/Qehont tmdoest f €38 millinn
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WORK EXPERIENCE (Continued) Robert Boschen, Jr.

State of Maine, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Augusta, Maine Nov 2003 - Oct 2006
Director of Finance for the Office of Medical Services (Medicaid) Aug 2005 - Oct 2006
Director of Finance & Reimbursement for Bureau of Medical Services (Medicaid) Nov 2003 - Jul 2005

0

a
O

Responsible for financial operations, strategies and tactics for the over $2.3 billion budget for the MaineCare
(Mediceid) and related Medicare budget. This consisted of approximately 25% 1o 30% of the State of Maine’s
budget and insures over 20% of the State of Maine’s population.

Duties became more sophisticated financial analysis, forecasting and reporting oriented as two separate units related
to reimbursement were elevated to their own Division status with their own full Directorships.

Reported directly to Deputy Commissioner of Finance for DHHS. On the Senior Management Team (SMT) of the
Office/Bureau. Interacted with all levels of State government including the Governor’s Office for Health Planning,
Consistently managed and balanced sensitive political implications with financial issues.

Dealt with numerous providers on their fiscal issues and requests for informal reviews of reimbursement.

Bureau contained about 240 employees. Approximately 100 reported to the Director of Finance and Reimbursement
position. These included financial staff responsible for ORACLE financials.

Responsible for budget, financial analysis, rate setting, third party liability, data capture & control and AR/AP cash
unit. :

Incorporated a monthly budget and detailed budgeting/forecasting model for MaineCare. Refined a cash flow model
to insure sufficient State and Federal funds are available.

The Certificate of Need Unit (CON) for hospitals was under this Division until combined with other CON areas.
Executive Committee member on the new Maine Claims Management System (MECMS). This was a $25MM to
$30MM system that became the claims processing systemn for MaineCare.

Developed and maintained an interim payment system that supplemented the payments for MECMS.

Reviewed policies and regulations for the Bureau to ensure financial issues are in compliance.

M&H Logging and Construction _ Rangeley, Maine
Controller September 2001 — November 20603

0
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Responsible for the financials, human resources, and office operations (including information technology) for a
construction business and its related entities including a logging corporation and 2 land enterprise. Company grew
from 30 to 70 employees.

Initiated working capital updates and monthly closings. Included percentage-of-completion analyses.

Managed two offices responsible for payroll, billing, accounts payable, job accounting and various other duties.
Responsible for insurance audits and price proposal bids from insurance companies for all insurances.
Coordinated worker’s compensation cases. O Managed land accounts.

Prepared forms for sales taxes, unemployment taxes, W-2s, 1099s, fuel excise tax refunds, and other related forms.
Kept W-9s and insurance certificates updated. A project to update these saved the companies tens of thousands of
dollars in insurance fees. 1 Maintained system hardware and software integrity.

Updated an in-house project tracking system and devising a method to reconcile it to the Peachtree Accounting
System.

Frankiin Community Health Network Farmington, Maine
Controller October 1997 — September 2001

ooQooao
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Reported directly to CFO for this rural health network that had about $63 million in revenues.

Involved in coordination of Certificate of Need to expand hospital facilities. Expansion was about $12.5 million.
Vastly improved analysis and reporting tools used by the Finance Department and the Network.

Involved with various special projects, many that involve heavy legal contact — one, providing Charity Care for the
indigent, as the start-up and continuing project manager, the other, a community based health card, as a financial
manager. Both were featured in the New England section of the Wall Street Journal. The former program received
national attention in various large publications including the Chicago Tribune and Boston Globe. It was featured on
the Today show as a revolutiopary new program in health care.

Presentations to all boards including parent, hospital, physician association and others.

Analyzed and created budgets to obtain grants.  Koordinated governmental grant audit.

Created a consolidated network income statement, balance sheet, and self-standing statement of cash flows.
Coordinated contracts with outside providers and strategic partners. One project, required support as a financial
manager, involved a forward thinking managed care cardjovascular program saving thousands per patient on cardiac
rehabilitation.

Involved in various other strategic and tactical projects including purchases of buildings and medical practices.
Involved in contract negotiation, including prices, and writing/formation of contracts. {J Created reports in
MEDITECH.



WORK EXPERIENCE (Continued) Robert Boschen, Jr.

Aetna, Inc and Aetna Life and Casualty September 1991- July 1997
Aetna, Inc. - Aetna/US Healthcare - Midwest Region Chicago, Illinois
Director Planning and Budgeting September 1996 - July 1997

O Responsible for operating plans, membership reporting and budget for the Midwest region (one of six and the
largest). $52 million in operating expenses. $1.4 billion revenue. $375 million projected profit.
0  Analyzed contribution margin, medical PMPM, and operating expenses on a monthly basis. Made recommendations
to improve the results related to these measures.
O Built reports and data gathering methods from foundation up. 0 Presentations to senior management.
0  Corrected/prepared financials for startup HMO state filing. U Managed special projects and financial plamning staff.
Aetna Life & Casualty Company - Pharmacy - Finance Department Middletown, Connecticut
Director/CFO - Finance . February 1994 - September 1996
O Complete responsibility for Finance Depariment. Reported to CEO. Cost center manager duties.
O Detailed exposure to mergers and acquisitions. 0 Taught audit department to perform non-statistical sampling.
O $825 million in revenue in 1996. Exceeded $1.1 billion by 1997. Profits of $4 million in 1993 expanded to $32
million for 1996. O Created 1996 to 1998 strategic plans.
0 Converted billing method to be in line with industry standards. This improved our competitive marketing status.
0 Responsible for financial reporting, controls, rebates, accounts payable, accounts receivable, pricing, policies and
procedures, budgeting, accounting research, special projects, and other financial duties.
0 Worked on projects to improve systems, automate reports, and increase data integrity. 0 Coordinated major project to
integrate Pharmacy data and systems into Aetna standard reporting systems.

.Aetna Life & Casualty Company - Information Technology Hartford, Connecticut
Expense Management Consultant & Account Representative September 1991 - February 1994
United Technologies - Otis Elevator International/Hamilton Standard Connecticat
Senior Tax Specialist, Consolidations Accountant & G/L Systems Admin. February 1988 - September 1991
Kaiser Permanente, Accountant - Medical Grouap Hartford, Connecticut, Dec 1986 - Feb. 1988
KMG Main Hurdman, Tax Specialist Stamford, Connecticut, March 1986 - Dec 1986

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS & EDUCATION
Member of Institute of Management Accountants Member of Government Finance Officers Association
[Associate Member Maine Society of Certified Public Accountants
[TThe University of Connecticut, Storrs, Connecticut Master of Business Administration
{ The University of Connecticut, Storrs, Connecticut Bachelor of Science in Business Administration - Finance



Christopher W. Kempton, D.D.S.

Objective:

I am guided by a desire to be helpful and to put my skills to work.
Education:

Broward Community College, Davie, Florida
1973-1975
University of Florida, Gainesville, Florida
1977-1979
Emory University School of Dentistry, Atlanta GA
National Health Service Scholar and Advocate at Emory University
1979-1984

Work History:

Southside Medical Center, Atlanta, GA
1985-2007
Families First Health and Support Center, Portsmouth, NH
2007-2009
Aspen Dental, Concord and Rochester, NH
2009-2010
Tamworth Dental Center, Tamworth, NH
2010 to Present
Hillsborough County Department of Corrections, Manchester, NH
2013 to Present

Memberships:

North Country Dental Society
New Hampshire Dental Society
American Dental Association



Crystal Buswell, RDH

EDUCATION

1997 Kingswood Regional High School Wolfeboro, NH
1997 Region #9 Vocational Center
2004 New Hampshire Technical Institute
Associates Degree in Science with a major in Dental Hygiene
2005 New Hampshire Technical Institute - Local Anesthesia

LICENSURE

New Hampshire Dental Hygiene License

New Hampshire Local Anesthesia License

Maine Dental Hygiene License

Nation Board Dental Examination (written 2004)
N.E.R.B. Dental Hygiene Examination (clinical 2004)

EMPLOYMENT

2009-Present Tamworth Dental Center

Dental Hygienist: perform prophylaxis, periodontal scaling and root planing,
administer local anesthesia, oral hygiene education, radiographs, sealants,
fluorides with occasional dental assisting.

2006-Present Conway Village Dental Conway, NH

Dental Hygienist: perform prophylaxis, periodontal scaling and root planing,
administer local anesthesia, oral hygiene education, radiographs, sealants,
fluorides with occasional dental assisting.

2006-2007 Silva Family Dentistry Wolfeboro, NH

Dental Hygienist: perform prophylaxis, periodontal scaling and root planing,
administer local anesthesia, oral hygiene education, radiographs, sealants,
fluorides, bleaching instruction. Occasional assisting and reception with
related paperwork and scheduling. Proficient with Eaglesoft computer dental
program.

2004-2006 Thomas Shealy, DMD Stratham, NH

Dental Hygienist: perform prophylaxis, periodontal scaling and root planing,
oral hygiene education, radiographs, sealants and fluorides. Proficient with
Dentrix Software.



2004-2005 George Gaillardetz, DMD Wolfeboro, NH

Dental Hygienist: perform prophylaxis, periodontal scaling and root planing,
oral hygiene education, radiographs, sealants and fluorides. Proficient with
Practice Works Software.

1997-2002 White Mountain Community Health Ctr Wolfeboro & Conway,
Administrative & Medical Assistant, HIV test counselor, Phlebotomist,

Medication Bridge Interim Program Director. Providing many general office and
clinical support duties.

REFERENCES

Available upon request



RSA 317-A:13, 111  License Renewal states All persons licensedto
practice dentistry or dental hygiene in this state shall notify the board in
writing within 10 days of any change of business or residential address -

which may occur during the period between biennial registrations.

CHRISTOPHER W KEMPTON, DDS
TAMWORTH DENTAL CENTER
448B WHITE MOUNTAIN HWY
TAMWORTH NH 03886

\wm . Stute of Nefo Humpslsire

R

Y. Board of Dental Examiners

:-6‘1

CHRISTOPHER W KEMPTON, DDS
Active Lic #: 03317

Issued: 10/17/2002
Expires: 04/30/2016
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State of Fels Hanpshice

Board of Dental Examiners

CRYSTAL G BUSWELL, RDH
Active Lic#: 02403 .

Issued: 06/15/2004
Expires: 04/30/2015
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